
1 

FAIRFAX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
FORT BELVOIR/BASE REALIGNMENT AND CLOSURE (BRAC) COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 25, 2007 
                                                               

            
COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT:     
 Earl L. Flanagan, Mount Vernon District 
 Rodney L. Lusk, Lee District 
 Peter F. Murphy, Jr., Springfield District 
 Timothy J. Sargeant, At-Large 
      
STAFF PRESENT:  
 Marianne Gardner, Chief, Policy and Plan Development Branch, Planning Division (PD),  
  Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) 
 Lindsay Mason, BRAC Senior Planner, PD, DPZ 
 Cheryl Van Allen, BRAC Planner, PD, DPZ 
 Jennifer Lai, BRAC Planner, PD, DPZ 
 Barbara J. Lippa, Executive Director, Planning Commission Office 
 Sara Robin Hardy, Assistant Director, Planning Commission Office 
 Kara A. DeArrastia, Deputy Clerk to the Planning Commission 
 
// 
 
Chairman Peter F. Murphy, Jr., called the meeting to order at 7:31 p.m. in the Board Conference 
Room, 12000 Government Center Parkway, Fairfax, Virginia 22035.  He noted that the first 
order of business was approval of minutes. 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Lusk MOVED THAT THE BRAC COMMITTEE MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 
20, 2007 BE APPROVED. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 
 
// 
 
Marianne Gardner, Chief of the Policy and Plan Development Branch, Planning Division (PD), 
Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ), said the purpose of this meeting was to receive 
additional comments on the 2008 Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC)-related Area Plans 
Review (APR) Guide draft dated October 23, 2007, a copy of which is in the date file; provide a 
status update on public outreach and publications; and review next steps.   
 
Commissioner Sargeant outlined his suggested changes to the guide:   
 

 On page 4, in the second to last sentence of the last paragraph, change “may also have 
beneficial impact” to “also may have a beneficial impact.” 

 On page 8, after the first paragraph under the “Nomination Acceptance and Review” title, 
insert a “Did you know?” box with the definition of a nomination. 



2 

FORT BELVOIR/BRAC COMMITTEE                                                              October 25, 2007 
 
 

 On page 9, in the first sentence of the “Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) 
Review” paragraph, delete the additional “that.” 

 On page 12, in the fifth sentence of the first paragraph under the “Planning Commission 
Mark-up” title, change “may also” to “also may.”  In the last sentence of the same 
paragraph, change “on” to “about.” 

 On page 13, in the last sentence of the last paragraph under the “Submission” section, 
delete “also.” 

 On page 15, in the “Signature Line for Owner(s)” paragraph, underline the sentence: 
“The property owners whose signatures do not appear on this nomination….” 

 On page 17, in the fourth sentence of the “Tax map numbers for parcel” paragraph, 
change “are also” to “also are.”  

 On page 19, after the first paragraph under the “Non-residential Land Use Categories” 
title, insert a “Did you know?” box with the definition of floor area ratio. 

 
The Committee and staff agreed with these suggestions. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant called attention to item 4 under the “Part 6: Justification” section on 
page 20 and questioned whether nominations were required to benefit the transportation 
networks impacted by the changes anticipated in the area.  Chairman Murphy recommended 
replacing “benefit” with “address.”  Commissioner Sargeant agreed with this recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant referred to the “What is BRAC?” section on page 3 and suggested 
revising the number of U.S. Department of Defense jobs to 19,000.  Lindsay Mason, Planner III, 
PD, DPZ, expressed concern about this change because the decision on the remaining 
Washington Headquarters Services (WHS) jobs would not be made until February/March of next 
year.  Commissioner Lusk indicated that the Department of the Army was currently examining 
the possibility of relocating some of those jobs to Alexandria, so the total number of jobs being 
transferred to Fort Belvoir might be reduced by another 6,200.  He suggested replacing “over 
19,000” with “14,000 - 22,000.” 
 
Commissioner Flanagan asked whether the areas adjacent to the Community Business Centers 
(CBCs) along the Richmond Highway Corridor would be subject to nomination in the BRAC-
related APR process.  He indicated that the Southeast Fairfax Development Corporation (SFDC) 
had recommended flexibility along the corridor for more office development to help support the 
impact of BRAC, based on the goals identified in an Urban Land Institute (ULI) study.  He said 
SFDC had expressed concern that the Comprehensive Plan definition of the Richmond Highway 
Corridor precluded areas adjacent to the CBCs and had opposed including the suburban 
neighborhoods between the CBCs in the BRAC-related APR process.  Ms. Gardner outlined the 
two questions under consideration:  1) Should the special suburban neighborhoods between the 
CBCs be included in the BRAC-related APR process and 2) Should nominations be accepted that 
would expand a CBC either into a suburban neighborhood or an adjacent area along the 
Richmond Highway Corridor.  If these types of nominations were included in the BRAC-related 
APR process, she asked whether the same policy would apply to the other activity centers. 
 
 



3 

FORT BELVOIR/BRAC COMMITTEE                                                              October 25, 2007 
 
 
Commissioner Lusk commented that only certain CBCs were appropriate for additional 
development.  He explained that the ULI analysis had focused more on the north end of the 
Richmond Highway Corridor with North Gateway as the pivotal location for additional 
expansion and office use.  Commissioner Flanagan pointed out that the area between the 
Woodlawn Shopping Center and the Ingleside Shopping Center was in need of redevelopment 
but was not in the CBC.  Commissioner Lusk said the BRAC-related APR process should accept 
nominations for expansion in those areas designated by SFDC as opposed to the entire Richmond 
Highway Corridor. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Flanagan, Ms. Gardner explained that the 
Comprehensive Plan defined the Richmond Highway Corridor as that segment of Richmond 
Highway from the north, at the Capital Beltway and the City of Alexandria/Fairfax County 
boundary to the south, at Fort Belvoir, which included CBCs and designated suburban 
neighborhoods, generally extending 1,000 feet on either side of the highway centerline. 
 
Responding to a question from Commissioner Sargeant, Ms. Gardner noted that the BRAC-
related APR nomination areas targeted activity centers; however, other appropriate areas could 
be included in the process, such as Accotink Village.  Commissioner Lusk agreed that it would 
be logical to include Accotink Village in the process since it had been examined in the ULI 
study.   
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Flanagan, Ms. Gardner said staff would need to 
provide reasonable rationale for a particular area to be eligible for nomination in the BRAC-
related APR process, especially since other areas on the verge of redevelopment were not subject 
to nomination, such as Windsor Estates. 
 
Commissioner Flanagan suggested that staff insert language in the “Scope of the BRAC-Related 
APR Process” section of the guide that explicitly allowed nominations affecting parcels adjacent 
to a CBC to expand the CBC, but excluded nominations for suburban neighborhoods to encroach 
into a CBC.  Ms. Gardner pointed out that a BRAC-related APR nomination could be filed as a 
Plan Amendment if it was late or had special validity where the District Supervisor had accepted 
it and asked the task force to review it as part of the process. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant explained that the BRAC-related APR process would need to focus on 
those areas along the Richmond Highway Corridor and Fairfax County Parkway where the most 
prominent opportunity for BRAC-related development would be in proximity to Metrorail, the 
Engineering Proving Ground (EPG), Fort Belvoir, and other BRAC locations.   
 
Commissioner Sargeant pointed out that there were two page 5s in the guide. 
 
Responding to a question from Commissioner Lusk, Ms. Gardner indicated that the scope of the 
BRAC-related APR process included the General Services Administration site, the Springfield 
CBC, the Huntington Metro Transit Station Area (TSA), and activity centers within a three-mile 
radius around the EPG.  She noted, however, that the Beltway South area and Van Dorn TSA 
were excluded from this process. 



4 

FORT BELVOIR/BRAC COMMITTEE                                                              October 25, 2007 
 
 
Commissioner Flanagan recommended that staff add language to the “Scope of the BRAC-
Related APR Process” section of the guide that excluded the suburban neighborhoods and 
limited it to the CBCs, Fairfax County Parkway, and Richmond Highway. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Flanagan, Ms. Gardner said staff would alter the 
BRAC-Related APR Process Nomination Areas Map to redefine the I-95 Corridor Industrial 
Area as recommended by ULI, which included Fairfax County Parkway and Accotink Village.  
She noted that the map would be incorporated into the guide with a reference to the APR Web 
page to view enlarged parcels.  (A copy of the map is in the date file.) 
 
Responding to another question from Commissioner Flanagan, Ms. Gardner stated that 
nominations affecting parcels outside of the BRAC-related APR areas would be deferred to the 
2008-2009 South County APR process.  
 
Commissioner Lusk said that if during screening the Planning Commission decided that 
nominations did not meet the criteria for inclusion in the BRAC-related APR process, he 
recommended that the Commission inform the nominators of the South County APR process and 
provide them with the option to have their nomination deferred or to refile it in that process.  The 
Committee agreed with this recommendation. 
 
// 
  
With regard to hiring a consultant to help with outreach efforts, Ms. Mason stated that the scope 
of work had been submitted and staff expected to receive proposals on Monday, October 29, 
2007 and would select a consultant within the next few weeks.  She explained that the scope of 
work included development of the workshop sessions, public service announcements, and the 
initial task force meetings.  Ms. Gardner said the consultant would also help staff develop a 
session at the beginning of the process to educate people about the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Regarding publication efforts, Ms. Mason noted that staff had been working with another 
consultant on developing a branding, finalizing a logo, and redesigning the content and format of 
the BRAC-related APR Guide.  She said these efforts would use BRAC grant funds and staff 
anticipated applying some of the ideas developed in the BRAC-related APR process to future 
APR cycles.  Ms. Gardner noted that the purpose of these efforts was to help increase public 
participation and outreach.  
 
In response to a question from Chairman Murphy, Ms. Mason explained that the publication 
consultant would also redesign the tabloid, create a postcard, develop an online template for fact 
sheets, and post all materials on the APR Web page, which would feature a consistent theme and 
design. 
 
Ms. Gardner said staff would make the changes suggested this evening to the BRAC-related 
APR Guide. She requested that the Committee endorse the guide and forward it to the Planning 
Commission for approval by the end of November.  
 



5 

FORT BELVOIR/BRAC COMMITTEE                                                              October 25, 2007 
 
 
Responding to a question from Chairman Murphy, Ms. Gardner said the number of members 
representing each affected district on the BRAC-related APR Task Force had not be specified in 
the guide since it had not yet been decided by the Board of Supervisors. 
 
Commissioner Lusk MOVED TO ADOPT THE 2008 BRAC-RELATED APR GUIDE WITH 
THE AMENDMENTS SUGGESTED BY THE FORT BELVOIR/BRAC COMMITTEE THIS 
EVENING, AND WITH THE CAVEAT TO INCLUDE ANY EDITORIAL CHANGES MADE 
BY THE POLICY AND PROCEDURES COMMITTEE.  
 
Commissioner Flanagan seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 
 
// 
  
Ms. Gardner introduced Cheryl Van Allen, a recently-hired staff member dedicated to BRAC-
related efforts. 
 
// 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:11 p.m. 
Peter F. Murphy, Jr., Chairman 
 
For a verbatim record of this meeting, reference may be made to the audio recording which can 
be found in the Planning Commission Office, 12000 Government Center Parkway, Suite 330, 
Fairfax, Virginia 22035.        

  
 
Minutes by:  Kara A. DeArrastia 

 
Approved on:  January 24, 2008      

 
 
             
  Linda B. Rodeffer, Clerk 

  Fairfax County Planning Commission 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 


